
NATIONAL INDIAN GAMING COMMISSION 

NOTICE OF VlOLATlON 

TO: J. Randy Gallo (Via Certified U.S. Mail) 
17 107 Jupiter Fanns Rd. 
Jupiter, FL 33478 

Bettor Racing, hc. (Via Facsimile & Certified U.S. Mail) 
3709 S. Frange Avenue 
Sioux Falls, SD 57105 
Fax: (605) 275-942 1 

Tony Reider, President (Via Facsimile & Certified U. S. Mail) 
Flandreau Santee Sioux Tribe 
(AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS) 
P.O. Box 283 
Flandreau, SD 57028 
Fax: (605) 997-3878 

Ryan Kills A Hundred, Chairman (Via Facsimile & Certified U.S. Mail) 
Flandrcati Sa11ee Sioux Tribal Commission on Gaming 
P.O. Box 349 
Flrtndreati, 5D 57028 
Fax: (605) 997-2270 

A. Notjfication of Violation 

1. Notice of Violation - -  Bettor Racing, Inc. & J. Randy GaElo in his official 
and individual capacity 

The NIGC' Chainvornan gives notice that Bettor Racing, Inc. (Bettor Racing) and its ' 
President, .I. Randy Galla, in his ofificial and individual capacity, (Mr. Gal10 or 
collectively with Bettor Racing as Respondents), located ~ I I  FIandreau, South Dakota, 
managed a tribal gaming operation without an approved management contract in 
violation of the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGR4) and National Indian Gaming 
Commission (?4TCC) regulations born Septenlher 24,2004, through March 16.2005. See 
25 U,S.C. $3 2710(d)(9$; 271 1 ; 25 C.F.R. 5 573.(i(a)(7). 

Furlher, Respondents ~nanagcd an nfr-track betting operation callcd Royal River Racing - 
(thc OTR) nt thc I;la11drt2au Sailtec Sioux Tribc's (Tribc's) Royal Rivcr Casino (the 



Casino) under two unapproved modifications to a management contract from February 
15,2007, though April 5,2010, in violation of IGRA and NIGC regulations. See 25 
C.F.R. 
8 573.6(a)(7). 

FinaIly, Respondents had a proprietary interest in the OTB, and jn fact profited more 
from the OTB than did the Tribe itself. Respondents received more than 70% of the net 
gaming revenue from the OTB over the entire five-year term of its agreement with the 
Tribe. Moreover, Respondents ran the OTB as their own separate business and, tbcreby, 
controlled the money flowing into and out of the OT3. These actions violate the sole 
proprietary interest provision of IGM. See 25 U.S.C. 5 2710(b)(2); 25 C.F.R. 
$9 522.4($)(1), 522.7. As a consequence, Respondents'actions conflict with TCRA's 
con,oressionaIly mandated purposes of ensuring that the Indian tribe is the primary 
beneficiary of the gaming operation, and shielding the tribe from organized crime and 
other cornlpting influences. See 25 U.S.C. ij 2702(2). 

2. Notice of Violation - FIandreau Santee Sioux Tibe  

The NIGC Chairwoman also gives notice that the Tribe, located in Flandreau, South 
Dakota, permitted the Respondents to manage the OTB without an approved management 
contract in vialation of IGRA and NIGC regulations from September 24,2004, through 
March 16,2005. See 25 U.S.C. $$ 271 0(d)(9); 25 C.F.R. 5 573.6(a)(7). 

Moreover, the Tribe and the Respondents operated the OTB under two unapproved 
modifications to the management contract in violation of IGRA and NIGC regulations, 
from February 15,3007, through April 5,20 10. See 25 C.F.R. fj 573.6(a)(7). 

The Tribe elso failed to st~brni t the management letters prepared by the Casino's 
independent auditors, I-lanson, Vilhauer & Raml, P.C., within 170 days of its 2005 and 
2006 fi scaI year ends, in vicIation of NIGC regulations. Sec 25 C.F.R. tj 57 1.1 3a) .  

Finally, thc Tribe's paynlents of net gaming revenue to Respondents, over and above 
what was aIlowcd under the approved management contract, vioIated IGRA7s use of net 
gaming revenue mandates, as well as the Ftandreau Gaming Ordinance. ,See 25 U.S.C. # 
271 0(b)(2) and (3); 25 C.F.R. 9 522.6; Flandreau Gaming Ordinance tj 17-6-I(?). 

R. Authority 

LJtlder t G M  and NTGC regiIations, the NIGC C 1 1 a i ~ ~ m a n  (Cl-iainvoman) may issue a 
Notice of Violation (NOV) to any person for violation of any provision of E R A ,  NIGC 
re~alations. or any provisioll of a tribal gaming ordinance or resolution approved by the 
C:tlainvornan. 25 U.S.C. $ 2713; 25 C.F.R. tj 573.3, 



C. Backmund Summary 

The Tribe operates one gaming facility, the Royal River Casino (the Casino) which 
conducts both class II and class IFJ gaming. In 2004, the Tribe converted a room inside 
the Casino from a bingo hall into an off-track betting operation called Royal River 
Racing (the O m ) .  Bettor Racing, hc. d/b/a Royal River Racing (hereinafter Bettor 
Racing and together with Mr. Gallo as Respondents) was involved in the conversion md 
operated the OTB from its inception mtiI April 2010. 

In August 2009, the NICG Contracts Division conducted a compliance investigation of 
the management contract between the Tribe and Respondents. The management contract 
was approved by NIGC Chairman Phil Hogen on March 1 7,2005 (hereinafter the 
approvcd management contract). 

The N36C contract mmpIiance investigation focused an the calculation of the net gaming 
revenues of the QTB managed by Respondents. NIGC contract investigators found that 
Respondents claimed the 

as operating expenses of the OTB. ~ o i n g  so reiulted in 
decre&ed net ~aming reienues, which were to be divided between the Tribe and 
Respondents in accodance with the approved management contract. Under the terms of b 
the approved management contract, the aforementionedr A 

1 1 ~ h u 5 , E   were improperly included 
as operating expenses and deducted from the net profits to be split between the parties in 
accordance with the approvcd management contract. 

I n  addition to thcse improper operating expenses NTGC cantracr investigators discovered 
Bettor Racing paid bettors, including$- jncenti ves or rebates in percentages or 
amounts set by Mr. ~ a l l o . '  b. A bj4 

Bv letter dated Aueust 27.2009. the NlGC Director of Contracts and Director of 
~nfomcrneot inforked T h a t  Respondents were not in 
compliance with the approved management contGct. FoIlotving the August 27 Ietter, 
addi tionaI NIGC and Respondents resulte in Bettor Racing 

bb 
calendar year 2006; 6 $for cale~~dar year ~~1 

2008. The reirnburskments inJude thc amounts > well as the 
ovcr and short cxpcnsc2 of the OTB, and interest earned on patron accounts. 

' NIGC' continuq to investigate thc payment of bonrises or incentives to hertors: 1 
q a n d  thc consulting fees pvid to agents. These activities arc not Included in this NOV. 

' An "avcr and s lott expense" occurs ~v11en a tellcr errs and either overpays untlcrpays a winning ticket 
rcsr~liing In the belting pool being incorrectly distributed among the winning ticker holders. Thc amount 
paid by the O'TB to correct the teller's error was not allowed tn he arr expense of the 01% for p~rposcs of 
ca l t~~la t ing  the amount srvcd to the Tribc under the ajqroved nlanasernenr contract because the tellers were 
iindcr lIle cornplute control and direction of Respondents. These expcnqes arc rcqt~ircii to he pntd hy the 



During the contract compf ance investigation, hIGC learned that Respondents proposed 

reduce the Tribe's nimum guaranteed 
telephone wagers3 of all gross llandle 
in exccss of$ revcnucs. The 
Tribe agreed io 
but did not net gaming revenues that the 

The Trjbe's attorney, 
Terry Pechota, advised Respondents and the Tribe that the NIGC would not appro-ve any 
modification to the approved management contract that resulted in the Tribe receiving 
less than 60% of the net gaming revenue. 

A modification guaranteed payment to include[ $ of all gross 
as executed by the parties on February 15,2007 (the 

was submitted to the NTGC for NIGC bL( 
Chairman Hogen's approval on Febnrary 16,2007. OR April T 3,2007, the NIGC 
received a letter From the Tribe's attorney, Teny Pechota, requesting that the NIGC hold 
the approval of the first modification in abeyance until the Tribe's litigation wit11 the 
State of South Dakota was resolved. The Tribe's litigation with the State of South Dakota 
has not yet been resolved and the first modification to the approved management contract 
has never been approved by the MGC. 

Rased on the review of financial records during the investigation, it was discovered that 
Respondents had been paying the Tribe its minimum guaranteed payment pursuant to the 
t m s  of the first modification. Further, Rlespondents applicd the terrns of the first 
modification retroactively to January 1,2006. Therefore, Respondents operated the OTB 
under the first modification to the management contract from at least Febniary 1 5,2007, 
until August 1,2005, in violation of IGRA and MGC regulations, and received bonuses 
based on ihe first modification during calendar ycars 2004,2007, and 7 rrlonths of 2008. 

The investigation aIso revealed that Respondents had approached the Tribe in 2008 
requesting yet another modification (the second 
contract to reduce the minirnu~n guaranteed 
of all gmss andle up j and including 
excess of 8 j ~ t h o u ~ h  never ibrmaiize 
Samp, the Tribe's atton~ley, executed a statement dated October 3 1,2008, advising t11c 
external auditor for the Tribe's gaming operation that the Tribe's Executive Cornmiltee 
had approved an amendment to the compensation portion of the matla cnlent cotltract to 
lower the minimum guaranteed payment to) k /of the first $ ' ?in gross handlk 

4 3r 4 

Respondents pursuant to the FIandreau Santee Sraux Tribe Gaming Commission f an-n~utuel Rcttrng 
Gaming Rcplations. SPP Flnndreau Smtec Sioux Tribe Gaming C'ommission Pari-mntueI Betting Gaming 
Jtcg~~lations $ 2h.ZPO. 
j ,411 S U ~ S C ~ I J I ~  rekrcmcs to gross handIe refa to the p s s  handlc for all tc lephoa be~ting. Tl~e  

percentage ( I)) paid to the Tnhc for all walk-in betting as  prt3vlded in the approved management contract 
has never been ctrangcd or modified by the parties. 



i- 

plusr 3 of all gross handle in mess of 30 be effective August 1,2008. 
See L'etter from Rollyn Samp to Whom It f i y  ~oncem,  dated October 1,2005. The b 
second modification to the management contract was not submitted to the NEGC for 
approval and, thus, was never approved. Therefore, Respondents operated the OTB under 
the second modification to the management contract fkom August I, 2008, to April 5, 
2010, in violation of IGRA and NIGC regulations. 

Even though the first and second modifications were not approved, Respondents sfill 
received rbe benefit of them in the form of "annual bonuses." The review of financial 
records revealed that Respondents received an annual bonus h r n  the ribe tha 
provided for in the ap ruved rnanasrnent contract in the amount of p b C .. x""' b4 calendar y e ~ r  22005; 5. Tor calendar year 2006; S' Ifor calendar year 
2007; and !I: calendar year 2008. The bonu; payments dr calendar years 
2006,2007,Ld 2008 match the exact dollar amount that Respondents would have 
received under the first and second modifications. In order to scdistrib~rte the net profits 
provided for the fmt and second unapproved modifications, the parties called the 
amounts a 'bonus" and agreed to exchange or swap checks on an annual basis follawing 
the year end audit of the OTB. 

Respondents ran the OTR as if they wme the sole owners of the operation by hiring and 
paying all of the employees of the OTB; adopting separate employee policies for OTB 
cmployces; setting the hours and times that the O m  would he open; maintaining separate 
bank accounts for the operation; handling all of the accounting, including an annual audit; 
and, making all other decisions regarding the operation of the business such as the 
amount of the incentives or rebates paid to bettors and the consulting fees paid to agents 
who brought in bettors, both of which significantly affected the net profits of the 
operalion. 

WIlcn Respondents' approved management contract with the Tribe ended, Respondents 
movcd the OTB to Sioux Falls, South Dakota. taking wit11 it the OTB" phone numbers. 
televisions, tote terminals, and sateIlite receivers. 

The primary role the Tribc had in the OTB was to accept the weekly minimum payment 
as calculated by Respondents. As noted above, the Casino also exchanged chccks with 
Respandents once a year. The annual exchange of checks, termed "'the check swap" by 
Respondents but called a '%onus" by the Tribe, resulted in Respondents receiving a 
higllcr percentage of the net profits than was allowed undm the approvcd mana_gernexlt 
contract. The annual cl~eck swap or "banus" resulted in Respo~~dents receiving a 
disproportionately high percentage of the net gaming revenues o f  the OTB over the entire 
term of the approved management contract. As a result of the additional amounts paid by 
the Tribe, Respoudents received 72% of the OTB net gaming revenues for calendar year 
2005; 79% of t l~e  OTR net gaming revenues for calendar year 2006; 78% of the OTB net 
gaming revenues for calendar year 2007; and 80% of the OTB net gaming revenues for 
calendar year 2008. TGRA and NTGC regulations cap the percentage of nct gaming 
revenues that a mmlger can receive for managing a tribal gaming operation to be no more 
than 40%. See 25 U.S.C. 9 271 1(~)(3); 25 C.F.R. ij 531.1(I). 



Respondmts' control over the OTB and its receipt o i a  high percentage of the nel gaming 
revenues provided Respondents with a proprietary interest in the OTB in violation of 
IGRh, NIGC regulations, the Flandreau Gaming Ordinance and the Flandreau Pari- 
mutuet Betting Brdinance. See 25 U.S.C. $5 27 1 O(b)(Z)[A), (d)(I)(A)(ii); 25 C,F.R. 
5 522,G(c); Flandreau G m h g  Ordinance 5 17-6-114) and Flandreau Pari-mutuel Betting 
Ordinance 5 4. 

The annual check swapping or '%bonusn paid to Respondents also resulted in a substantial 
reduction of net gaming reverzues of the Casino and thus a substantial reduction of the nct 
gaming revenues distributed to the Tribe, as required by IGRA and the Elandreau Gaming 
Ordinance. Therefore, it was a misuse of the Tribe's net gaming revenue for the Casino to 
return net gaming revenues to Respondents as a "bon~nus" illstead of distributing it to the 
Tribe as required by federal and tribal law. 

Additionally, the Casino" independent auditor, Donald J. Ram1 of Hanson, Vilhauer and 
Ram1 P.C., iswed two management letters that were not submitted within 120 days of the 
Casino's 2005 and 2006 fiscal year ends as required by NIGC reglations. See 25 C.F.R. 
9 571.13Ca). 

In sum, the actions taken by Respondents and the Tribe conflict with JGRA, NTGC 
regulations, and the Elandreau Gaming Ordinance. IGRA was enacted to ensure that 
tribes arc the primary beneficiaries of their saming operations and are shieIdcd h m  
cormpting influences. By acting under the first and second modifications to thc 
management contract, Respondents were paid excessive net gaming revenues of the OTB 
- these substantial payments deprived the Tribe of being the primary beneficiary of the 
OTR. Further, for the rcasons described above. Rcspondents had a proprietary interest in 
the OTR in violation of  IGTW. 

D. Applicable Federal and Tribal Laws 

1. I G M  provides that an Indiati tribe may cnter in to a rnarlagetnent contract 
for the operation of a class IIi gaming activity if such contract has been 
submitted to, and approved by, the Chairwornan. 25 U.S.C.. 8 27 1O(d)/9). 

2. A managenlent contract is defined by NIGC reg~~lations as "any contract. 
subcontract, or collateral agreement between an Indian tribe and a 
contractor or between a contractor and a subcontractor if such contract or 
agreement provides for the management of all or part of ri gaming 
operation." 25 C.F.R. fi 502.1 5 .  

3, Management contracts and chanycs in persons with a financial intercst i n  
or manascmenl responsibility for a ma~~agemenl contract that have not 
been approved by thc Cliainvornan arc void. 25 C.F.R. 5 533.7. 



4. NIGC regulations provide that a tribe may enter into a modification of a 
management contract for the operation of a class 11 or class 111 gaming 
activity, subject to the approval of the Chairwoman. 25 C.E.R 4 53 5 ,  I (a). 

5. NIGC regulations require that a tribe submit a modification of a 
management contract for the operation af a class II or class ILT gaming 
activity to the Chairwoman upon its execution. 25 C.F.R. § 535.10) .  

6. Any modifications to a management contract for the operation of a class II 
or class III gaming activity that have not been approved by the 
Cl~airwoman are void. 25 C.F.R. 8 535.1(f). 

7.  NTGC regulations provide that it is a substantiaI vio1ation of IGRA fm a 
management contractor to manage m Indian gaming operation without a 
contract that the Chairwoman has approved under part 533 of NIEC 
regulations. 25 C.F.R. 5 573,6(a)(7). 

8. NlGC reguIatians define "class 111 gaming" as including "any sports 
betting md pari-mutuel wagering including but not limited to wagering on 
horse mcing, dog racing or jai alai . . .." 25 C.F.R. 5 502.41~). 

9. IGRA requires that, to IawfulIy operate Indian gaming, a tribe must have a 
tribal gaming ordinance approved by the NlGC Chairwoman. 25 U.S.C. 
43 271 (Nb)CI)CB). (d)ll)(A)- 

10. IGRA defines class III gaming as all forms of gaming that are not class I 
or class IT. Pari-mutuel gaming is not defined as class I or class I1 under 
IGRA. 25 U.S.C. 3s 2703C6)-(8). 

I 1. The Tribe's amended class ILI gaming ordinance (the Flandtcau Gaming 
Ordit~wcc) approvecl by NIGC Chairman Montie Deer e n  June 21, 1999, 
dcfines "Class III Garning" as "all fonns of ganiing that are not class I or 
class II, as thosc tcnns arc defined in the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act, 
inclridirlg but not linlited to . . .."Flandreau Gaming Ordinance IZ; 17-I- 
3 4 ) .  

12. Thc Flancjrca~t Gaming Ordinance requires that "all proceeds of the 
gaming activities authorized by this ordinance and received by the Tribc 
sIlaI1 be used to promote the health, education and welhre of the 
Flandreau Santee Sioux Tribc." Flandreau Gaming Ordinance 4 17-6-10). 

13. IGRA requires that the tribal gaming ordinance ]nust provide that the trihe 
have the soIe proprietary interest in a~ltld resportsibility for the conduct of 
any gaming activity. 25 U.S.C. $6 27 10(b)(2)(A), (d)(l)(A)(ii). 



14. NIGC regt1Iations require that a tribe's gaming ordinance provide that ''the 
Tribe shall have the sole proprietary interest in and responsibility for the 
conduct of any gaming operation.'' 25 C.F.R. S;g 522.4(b)(l), 522. h(c). 

I 5 .  TIie Tribe's ordinance on pari-mutuel betting (the Flandreau Pari-mutuel 
Betting Ordinance) approved by NIGC Chairman Phil Hogen on June 21, 
2004, provides that "the Flandreau Santee Sioux Tribe shall have the sole 
proprietary interest in and responsibility for the conduct ofpwi-rnutuel 
betting on Tribal lands." FIandreau Pari-mutuel Betting Ordinance 6 4. 

16. IGR4 requires that class III gaming operations may only be lawfully 
collducted if the gaming is conducted pursuant to an ~rdinmce that meets 
the requirements of 25 U,S.C. 27IO(b). 25 U.S.C. 5 2710(d)(l)(A)(ii). 

7. JGRA requires a tribal gaming ordinance to provide that the net gaming 
revenues from any tribal gaming operation are not be used for any purpose 
other tl~an to: fund tribal government operations or programs; provide for 
the genera1 welfare of the lndian tribe and its members; promote tribal 
economic development; donate to charitable orgafjztions; or help fund 
operations of local government agencies. 25 U.S.C. $6 271 O@)(2)(B), 
@)I 1 )(A)(ij). 

18. The Flandrcau Gaming Ordinance requires that "the Flandreail Santee 
Sioux 'Tribe shall receive at least sixty percent (60%) of the net revenues 
of all gaming activities condticted p~~rsuant to this ordinance." FIandreau 
Gaming Ordinance $ 17-6-1 (4). 

9. IGR4 and NIGC rcg~lations prohibir the Chainvoman from approving 
any managenlent contract that provides for a fee based upon a percentage 
of the net retrenves of a tribal gaming activity in excess of 30% or if the 
Chainvoman is satisfied that the capital investment required and incomc 
projections require all additional fee up to 40%. 25 U.S.C. 5 27 1 1 (c); 25 
C,T;.R. 5 53 1.1Ii). IGRA and NIGC regulations do not allow a 
mrlnagcrncnt conlrdclor to receive more than 40% of the net revenues of 
any tribal gaming activity under any circumstances. Id. 

20. Failure to comply with any provision of IGRA, NIGC regulations, or an 
approved tribal gaming orditlance is grounds for issuance oP a notice oP 
violation (NOV). 25 U.S.C. 5 271 3; 25 C.F.R. ij 573.3(a);. 

21. Failure to comply with NIGC regulations requiring the submission of 
nlanagetnent letters prepared by the Casino's independent auditor within 
120 days of the end of the Casino's fiscal ycar is grounds for issuance of a 
nolice nf violatio~z. 25 C.F.K, 6 571.13(a). 



1. Thc Tribe is a federally recognized Indian tribe with hadquarters in 
Flandreau, South Dakota. The Tribc operates the Casino, which incIudes 
both class 11 and class I11 gaming. As part of the class IT1 gaming, the 
Tribe operated a pari-mutuel betting operation known as Royal River 
Racing (the OTB) that was managed by Respondents. Respondents 
managed the OTB from September of 2004 to April of 20 1 0. 

2. Bettor Racing, Inc. (Bettor Racing) is a business corporation registered in 
the State of South Dakota. This corporation was registered on January 7, 
1998. Bettor Racing lists its current principal executive ofice sms 3705 S. 
Grange Avenue, Sioux Falls, South Dakota, 57105. 

3. J. Randy Gallo (Mr. Gallo) is Iisted in thc Articles of hcorpo~ation of 
Bettor Racing as the sole shareholder and member ofthe Board of 
Directors. The Articles of heorporation wem filed with the Secretary of 
State for the State of South Dakota on January 7, 1999. 

4. Mr. Gallo has been listed as the Director of Bettor Racing in its Annual 
Reports to the Secretary of State for the State of South Dakota since 1999, 
and negotiated the originaI management agreement with the 'Tribe on 
behalf of Bettor Racing. 

5. Bettor Racing's fiscal ycar runs from January 1 through December 3 1 of 
every calendar year. 

FIRST VIOLATION 
Resr>ondel~ ts and tlre Tribe vi ol-a_t_e-TGRk and NIGC regulatiogs -- r n a n a a a n  1ndi.g~ 

gqn1in.g operation without an approvc(1 ~n_.uza~c~ncnt contract 

6. On March 22, 2004. in Resolution No. 04-25, thc Trihe authorized thc 
Tribal President, Leorlard Eller, to sign a ntanagement contract rvi th Betlor 
Racing to manage the OTB iit the Casino. Prcsider~t Eller was also 
authorizcd to submit the agcerncr~t to the NIGC for approval. 

7. On March 26, 2004, NIGC rcceived a copy of a rnanasemalt contract, 
between Bettor Racing and the Tribc for reviemf and approval by NIGC 
Chainria11 Flogen. In addition, on that datc, the I'ribe also submitt& the 
Flandrcatr Parj-mutrlcl Betting Ordinancc for Chairman Hogen's review 
and approval. 

8. Oil June 21, 2004, Ghaim~an Hogen approved the Fiandreau Pari-mutuel 
Betting Ordinance. 



9. Throughout 2004 and early 2005, employees of the MGC, a p t s  of lhe 
Tribe, and Respondents had multiple communications regarding changes 
that needed to be made to the management contract before the NIGC 
Chairman could approve it. 

10. Respondents began doing business as Royal River Racing at the Casino on 
September 24,2004. Specifically, Respmdenl operated the OTB by 
accepting and placing bets on behalf of patrons at the Casino as we11 as 
accepting wagers placed over the telephone. Respondents' employees 
were present and working at the OTB from September 24,2004, through 
March 16,2005, as evidenced by the daily expenses incurred by them at 
the Casino, as well as telephone and other utiIity costs that Respondents 
were subsequently required to pay to thc Casino. 

I I .  Respondents' employees incurred expenses charged to Respondents on a 
daily basis. Further, the Casino authorized Responden is to incur expenses 
daily on the Casino's accounts with local merchants. The Casino billed 
Respondents an a monthly basis for these expenses and stccqted the 
reimbursements paid by Respondents. Additionally, the Casino accepted 
and deposited payments from Respondents for a portion of the nel 
revenues generated by the OTB. 

12. h addition to the facts above, Respondents had cxtensivc authority over 
and control of the OTB. Rcspondcnts determined the budget, were 
responsible for the hiring and firing of all crnpIoyees, fornlally adopted an 
employee handbook applicable only to OTB employees and made 
virtually all the business decisions regarding the OTR. 

13. Beltor Racing's fiscal Far end i s  hased on the calendar year end- or 
December 31, rather than on the fiscal year end used by the 7kibc and 
Casino, which is Scptcmber 30. The OTB was audited indcpcnda~lly from 
tI~e Casino by an audit firm hired solely at the discretion of Respondents. 

14. The OTB's gross hzndle from September 2004 through December 2204 
was 6- I 

p. / 

15. Respondents made payments to thc Tribe totaling 6 or t l~c  pa+ a rnutuel betting conducted at thc OTB from ~eptemGr 24.20 4, throt~gh b'4 
December 31,2004. 

16. Respondents continued to makc weokly paymcnls to the 'I'ribt for each 
week from January 3005 tlrough March 20115. 

1 7. Chairman Hogen approved a managcrnent contract belweer~ thc Tribc and 
Respondents on March 1 7, 2005. 



18. Therefore, Respondents managed the OTB from September 24,2004, 
through March 16,2005, without a management corttracl approved by the 
Chairman in violation of IGRA and MGC regulations. 25 U. S.C. 
5 2710(d$(9), and 25 C.F.R. 4 573.6(a)(7), 

19. Fuahermore, the Tribe permitted the Respondents to manage the CETB 
without an approved management contract from Sqternber 24,2004, 
through March IG, 2005, in violation of lGRA and NIGC regulations. 25 
U.S.C. 4 2710(d)(9), and 25 C.F.R. 4 573.6(a)(7). 

20. Prior to the management conkact being approved by Chairman Hogen, the 
Tribc entered into a cons~llllting agreement d a t d  September 20, 2004, with 
Mr.Gallo to act as a consu!tmt for thc O m .  The consulting agreement 
was limited to Mr. CraIlo providing advice on running an OTl3 prior to 
approval of the management contract. However, Mr. GaUo was not . . 

operating as a consultant but was, in fact, managing the OTB starting on 
September 24,2004. 

SECOND VIOLATION 
kspondents and the Tribe violate IGRA and NlGC regulations - o ~ e r a t i n ~  under two 

unapproved modifications to the approved management cog= 

2 1. As noted above, on March 1 7,2005, Chairman Hogcn approved a 
management contract between the Tribe and Retror Racing. 

22. The approved management contract provides that Respondents' 
management fee is a percentage of the net revenue of d ~ e  OTB based on a 
sliding scale. IVhen the gmss is less than 3 
Respondents' rnan~cmen t  fe net rcvcnue. Wlcn the cross 
handle volume is 7 
Respondents' managemen W ~ c n  the goss 

nndlc voltme is above $(  respondent^' management fee is 
7io of the net revenue. C 4 

23. The approved management contract further provides that the Tribe's share 
of the nct revenue from the OTB is also a sliding scale based on the gross 
l~nndlcryolumes of the operation. When the gross handle v lume is lcss 
than Sj 3 the ~ribe's share of the net revery  i$& of nct 
gamingrevenu5 When the gmss hand1 e volume i s  $I ]or greater 
bnt less than S/ h 3 h c  T r i b e  share is[ h o'f net rcvenne. When 

volume i s  above 7 11e Tribe's share of the 
L 3 

24. Under the approved thc Tribe's minimum giiarantecd payment 
will ncvcr be less tli gross pi~hlic handle generatccl by walk-in 



bctfing at ihe OTB plus thc greater of er week or /O of the 
gosross halldie generated by telephone be2ing at bq 

25. The approved'management contract provides that the net revenue is to be 
calculated 011 a monthly basis and that both the Tribe's share and 
Respondents' fee were to be paid simultaneousIy each month. 

26. The approved management contract provides that Respondents pay the 
salary of the General Manager from the management fee through the 
duration of the management contract. 

27. Under t l~e  approved management contract, Respondenis were to transfer 
the minimum guaranieed payment to the Tribc by delivering a check for 
the amount to the Casino finance department on a weekIy basis. 

28. The Casino's comptroller, Lamel Tye, verified that the correct amount 
was being transferred by reviewing the gross handle mounts  transmitted 
dircctly to her from United Tote, the tote company responsible for 
handling a11 wagers placed by Respondents. 

29. ARcr receiving thc tveckly payments from Respondents, the Casino would 
make a monthly payment to the Tribe for the nct gaming revenue earned 
by the Casino which was then transferred to the Tribe and deposited in the 
Tribe's bank accounts pursuant to the RAP. 

n. Ooerafi~lg under an unapproved modification uf a mfznazer~zent c0 wtract 
redt~cine. f he mil! inturn asarmteed o&~~~te~f- f iohf] - i~a~~dl~~r)~d 

C grass Iza~ziIIe. 

30. h 2006, the Respondents and Tribe agreed to reduce the guaranteed 
minimum on gross handle that uras set forth in the approve_d_ 
management contract. Accordingly, the payment was reduced fran{ $6 of 
the qss handle td?? of gross handle u to and including 5 f  P -I 

a n 8  of g ros~hhd le  in excess of L 

L- .d \rc i 
3 1. For fiscal year 2006, Respondents made payments equal to the reduced 

guaranteed minimum amount to the Tribe and the Tribe accepted them; 
thus, the parties acted nnder the first modification. 

32. Both the Comptroller for the Casino, Laurel Tye, and Ray Henry, General 
Manager for Respondent, confirmed that the first modification was in 
effect whcn the Casino's annual independent audit was conducted by 
Hanson, Vi'lhauer, & Ram1 for the Casino's 2006 and 2007 fiscal years. 
The Tribe submitted audits for 2006 and 2007 to the NZGC. 



33. A draft modification representing the changes to the contract outlined in 
paragraph 30 above was submitted to the NIGC on January 19,2007. The 
January 19.2007, submission included a drafi tribal resolution authorizing 
the modification to the approved management contract, 

34. On February 16,2007, the Tribe submitted a final and executed 
modification (the first modification) for the NIGC Cbainnan's review and 
approvat. The first modj fication was dated February 1 5,2007. 

35. Also submitted to the NIGC on February 16,2007, were two letters, dated 
January 25,2007, one From Mr. Rollyn Samp, General Counsel for the 
Tibe, md one from Tribal President Joshua Weston, both requesting the 
Chaimm Hogen's review and approval of the first modification. Along 
with the January 25 letters, the February 16,2007, submission included 
the Tribal President's certification of autl~ority, and the fully cxacutd first 
modification dated February reduced the minimum 

the goss handle above 

3 6. On April 13,2007, Terry Pechota, attorney for the Tribe's Gaming 
Commission, requested on behalf of the Tribe that the NIGC hold in 
abeyance a final decision on the first modification untiI such time as the 
litigation regarding the Tribal-State Compact with the State of South 
Dakota was resolved. 

37, NlGC Director of Contracts, Elaine Saiz, confirmed the receipt of thc 
Tribe's request and agreed to hold the review ofthe first modification in 
abeyance until the litigation between the Tribe and the State of South 
Dakota was resolved. 

38. Attorney for the Tribe's Gaming Commission, Terry Pechota. informed 
the C~eneral Counsel for the Tribe, RoEIyn Smp, that thc contract could 
not be approved or disapproved until the litigation was resolved. 

39. The litigation between the Tribc and the State of South Dakota regarding 
the Tribal-State Compact is stiTI pending, and the first modification to thc 
approved management contract has never been approved by the NlGC 
Chairwoman. 

40. Chairman Hogm never approved the first modification, dated February 
1 5,2007, to the approved management contract. 

41. The Respondents and the Tribe acted mder the first modification, 
resulting in the Tribe receiving less of the net gaming revenue than jt 
should have received under the approved mana, aement contract. 



42. Acting under thc first morlification, the Respondents and thc Tribe. agreed 
to the followit~g bonus payments which were not in compliance with the 
approved managenlent contract: 

43. Respondents condrlcted gaming operations at the Casino under the first 
modification, an unapproved modification to a management contract, in 
vialation of TGRA and N G C  regulations, 25 U.S.C. fi 271 1 and 25 C.F.R. 
ij 573.6(a)(7$, from February 15, 2007, to July 31,2008. And, the Tribe 
agreed to the first modification and act& under it in concert wit11 the 
Respondents in violation o f  NCC regulatioi~s. 25 U.S.C. 5 271 1 (a)(ll; 25 
C.F.R. 8 573.6(a)(7). 

Calendar 1 Year 

h. geco~ld irzstance of operubilz,~ under an unapproved mod ficcftion of a 
m lrlr e r g t  conrract rcd~tcing t~re n1inimuamnfeed ~ n ~ e ~ o r i  fmm_ b L( [-)k%&oss hclvd2e_o[;" of moss bondle. 
+ 

44. On or about August 1,2008, Respondents and the Tribe ageed to another 
modification (the second modification) to the approved management 
contract, making a second payment 
w gross handle over ?f- by 

which split under to Bettor Tribe (1'' 
based4 approved Racing Modification) 

Net 
Inconle on 

45, This second modification was put into effect by the Respondents and the 
Tribe on August 1,2008. Both the weekly minimum paranteed payment 
and the end of year settlement calculation reflected this second 
modification. 

I Ttlc nct income on which thc split of revenues is based was derived from the audited financial statements 
prtlvided hv Bettor Racing, Iuc., plus the addition of mdispr~ted amounts that should have becn included m 

Amount 
due Tribe 

net income purquant to the approved management cnntracr such as Mr. Gallo's and Mr. Henry's salaries, 
interest income, and over/shofi amounts due to tellm error. 
The amount due the Tribe under tht: approved managemenl contract rep~escnts the split of monthly net 

mcom hared sn the a plicable percentage each month. For example, in January the atmu I oss handle is 
lcsc than $? $0 the a~plicabk percentage lor the split of monthly net income i f % t  the Tnbr 
a n T %  i?Rettm ~Bing. h Dermhq when the anoval @ i s  handle totaled over ir 
app i ~ h l e  percentage f i r  the split waJ to the Tribe an& to Renor Racing. F? ear* of c:llculation, 
!he pqenngc  split applied to tho un&$ted mounts added back Into net income ( s s  footnote 4 above) 
wasl ' 6  to ihz Tribe a n t  b/o lo Bettor Racing. *- I 

4 

Unapproved 
"Bonus" paid 

Amount 
Received by 



46. Additionally. both parties asserted that the second modification was in 
cffect during the annual independent audit for calendar year 2008 
conducted by Hanson. Vilhauer, & R m l .  Both the Tribe's comptroller, 
1,aurel Tye, and Ray I-Icnry, Bettor Racing's General Manager, 
documented the reduction in the mi~iimunl guaranteed payment that the 
Casino received during calendar year 2008. Further, the Tribe's General 
Counsel, RolIyn Samp, wrote a nlcrnorandum confirming that the Tribe's 
Executive Com~cil had approved the amended compensation terms. 

47. Respondents began making the weekly payments to the Tribe in 
accordance with the second modification and the Casino accepted the 
reduced minimum guaranteed payment equal t o r  ah of the gross handle b(t 
from August 1,2008, through April 5,201 0. t? 

48. The second modification was never submitted to the NIGC or approvcd by 
the NIGC Chairwoman. 

49. Acting under the second modification, the Respondents and the Tribe, 
agreed to the following payments which were not in compliance with the 
approved management contract: 

Calendar 
Year 

1 
I 

Amount 
Received by 
Tribe (znd 
Modification) 

contract' , 
s 1 

50. Respo~ldcnts conducted the OTB under an unapproved second 
modification to a management contract in violation of IGRA and hqGC 
regulations. 25 U.S.C. 5 271 1 and 25 C.F.R. 5 573.6(a)(7), from August 1, 
2008, to April 5,2010. And, the Tribe agreed to the unapprox~ed second 
modification and acted under it in concert with thc Respondents in 
violation of IGRA and NTGC regulations, 25 U.S.C. 5 271 l(a)(l) and 25 
C.F.R. 5 573.6(a)(7). 

Net Income 
on which 
split based" 

P. 7 

THIRD VIOLATION 
Respondents violate sole proprietary interest mandate of IGRA and MGC reg;ulations 

-a L- 3 I , 

5 1. Respondents exercised complete control over the OTI3 and ran the OTB as 
their own separate business and thereby contrclled thc money flowin3 into 
and out of the operation. 

Amount due 1 Unapproved 
Tribe under 1 Bonus paid to 

See kn t~o l e  7. 
See hotrlotc 8. 

approved 
management - 

Bettor 
Racing 



52. All of t11c OTB employees were hired and paid by Respondents. 
Furlhcrmore. Respondents adopted their own employee policies to be 
applied only to OTB employees. 

53. Respondetlts made all accounting and financial decisions related to the 
OTB. Respondents hired an auditor to perfom an annual audit of the OTE3 
separate and apart from the Casino. Respondents also maintained separate 
bank accounts from the Casino. 

54. Respondents profited mare from the OTB than the Tribe. 

55. For calendar year 2005, the net gaming revenue of the OTB was 
6- 1 

56. Thc Casino received a total payment of 5 Ifor calendar year 2005 bv 
from Respondents. 

57. On August 3 I ,  2006, the Tribe issued Resolution No. 06-100 that 
authorized a payment of $_ 3 to Respondents for calendar year 2005. bcf 

58 .  On September 6,2006, the 'Tribe's President, Mark AIlq  s iged a check 
request for a bonus payment to Respondents for $- . ]from the 
Casino. The check uras issued directly out of the Casino's account. 

b l  

59. This transfer by the Casino was accounted for as an expense of the gaming 
operation and none of the hnds transferred on September 6,2006, were 
ever distributed to the Tribe as net gaming revenue as required by IGRn 
and the Flandreau Gaming Ordinancc. 

GO. The bonus was recorded in the Respondents' financial records as a "tribal 
bonus." 

61. As a direct result of the tribal c'hanus" for calendar year 2005, 
Respondents received 65% of the net gaming revenues of the OTB in 
calendar year 2005 in violation of IGRA, NIGC regulations, and the 
Flandreau Pari-mutuel Betting Ordinance. See 25 U. S.C. 
$5 271 0@)(2)(A), (d)(T)(A)(ii); 25 C.F.R. fi 522,6(c); Flandreau Pari- 
nlzltuel Betting Ordinance $4. 

62. For calendar year 2006, the totaI net revenue of the OTR was $r 7 
Under t l ~ e  terms of the original management conkact, the amo& owed & 
the Tribe should have been Sf gased on the scale included in th\ 
contract as fol ows:[ of n% gaming revenues for the first < 1 

bY 
of handle and( 3 of net gaming revenues for handle between 

ST_ -jmd $[ 3 



63. The total amount paid to the Tribe by Respondents as cornpensatiorr far 
the management contract for calendar year 2006 was $ j equa l  la by 
25% of the net revenue of the OTB. 

64.011 May 3 1,2007, Respondents made an additional payment to the Tribe 

o f s  30 make up the difference between weekly payments and $9 
the amount owed for calendar year 200G pursuant to the approved 
management contract. 

65. On May 3 1,2007, the Casino issued a check request in the amount of 
4 ]hr p a p e n t  to Respondents as a bonus for calendar year 
20061 A check in the amount of $ ~ W % S  issued on June 1,2007, bL( 
pursuant to the aforemmtioned check request, and signed by La~ml  Tye, 
ComptrolTer of the Casino and counter-signed by Gordon Jones Jr., 
Treaswer for the Tribe. 

66. This transfer by the Casino was accounted for as an expense of the Casino 
and none of the b d s  transferred to the Casino on May 3 1,2007, were 
ever distributed to the Tribe as net gaming r evem as required by TGRA 
and the Flandreau Gaming Ordinance. 

67. As a direct result of the bonus paid to Respondents, Respondents received 
75% of the net gaming revenues generated by the OTB for calendar year 
2006, in violation of IGRA, NIGC regulations, and the Flandreau Priri- 
rnutuel Betting Ordinmce. See 25 U.S .C. 8 5 271 0@)(2)(A), (d)(I)(A)(ii); 
25 C.F.R. 5 522.6(c); Flmdreatl Pari-mutuel Betting Ordinance 8 4. 

68. For calendar year 2007, the total net gaming revenue of the OTB was 

SC J Under f ie  terns oftnc management contract3 the amount 
owed to thc Tribe was $C 1 Fed on the scale included in the 
conkact a$ fallows r iq/o of net garmng revenues for the first $ 
of hand14 -  of net aming revenues for handle between S 
a q d c  ' jand{]/oofndievenu~fmgrosshandlemorethan 
ST t 3 

69. The totd cornpenszition distributed as net revenues to the Tribe for 
calendar year 2007 was f 125% of the net revenue of the OTB. bS 

70. On June 18,2008, Respondents paid the Casino 7to make up 
the difference between weekly payments and the &ount owed for 
calendar yew 2007 under the management contract. This mount was a 
payment that would bring the Tribe's net revenue fmm the OTB toL3h of 
the net revenue when combined with the p r e v e s  payments made as part 
of t l ~ e  minimum g u m t e e d  Jerceni of the net revenues 
represents what the Tribe was entitled to receive undw the approved 
management coiltract. 



71. On June 19,2008, a Casino check request was issued and Jal>il,eIed as 
"Bonus Bettor Racing 2007" in the amount of d 1 

72. On June 19 2008, two checks were issued to espondent in the amounts 
o i$L  . j a n d ~ c  l h r a t o t a ~ o f ~ ~  7 3 R e  cl~ecks 
were signed by Laurel Tye and cou~~ter-signed by Garrie KiIls A Hundred, 
a member for the Tribe's Execntive Committee. 

73. This transfer by the Casino was accounted for as m expense of the Casino 
and none of the funds transferred to the Casino on June 18,2008, were 
ever distributed to the Tsibe as net gaming revenue as required by IGRA 
and the Flandreau Gaming Ordinance. 

74. As a direct result of the bonus paid to Respondents, Respondents received 
75% of the net revenues generated by the OTB in calmdas year 2007, in 
violation of IGRA, MGC regulations, and the F l a n d r ~ u  Pari-mutuel 
Betting Ordinance. See 25 U.S.C. $5  2710(b)(Z)[A), (d)( I )(A)@); 25 
C.F.R. 5 522.6(c); FImdreau Pari-mutuel Betting OdinnncC $4. 

75. For calmdar year 2008, the total net revenue of the OTB was $- 
, ] 

Under the terms of the approved-management contract, the moGt owed 
to the T d x  sh011td have been -&wed on the scale included in 
the contract as follow. of nct @gaming revenuw fat the f i s t  

$- h a n d l E 3  af net aming revenues for handle between 
$? $tnd 2 an( 3 of net rev enus f ir  handle more 
trm !q - - 7 

.A 

75. The total payment distributed to the Tribe as net gaming revenue for 
calenda~ year 2008 was $: 3 22% of the total net revenue of the 
om. 

by 

77. Un June 10,21309, Respondents issued a check to the Casino in the amount 

4 3 b'i - 

78. On June 10,2009, a check request was issued by the Casino for paplent 
to the ~espondents in the mount of sf 1  he payment was for a half 
"bonus" for 2008. The check &quest Gas signed by Tribal President, 
Joshua Weston. A check was issued by the Casino an June 12,2009, for 
9$ 30 Respondents and was signed by Laurel Tye and cou~lter- 
s b e d  by Joshua Weston, President of the Tribe's Executive Committee. 

79. On June 3 0 009, tspandenis issr~ed a check to the Casino in the 
mwnt of Sf >This moun t  was a that would bring the b q 
Tribe's net revenue from the OTB to ' & of the net revenue when 



combined with the previous payments made as part of thc minimurn 
guaranteed payment punuarrt to the approved management contract. 

61). On June 24,2009, a cl~eck request was issued by the Casino Par 
Respondents in the amount of 1 Thc payment was for a second 
half %onusw to Respondents for 2008. The check request was signed by 
Laurel Tye and Jackie Bane. A check was issued by the Casino on June 
26,2009, for $ . j r o  Respondents and was signed by Laurel Tye and 
counter-simed y Gina Williams, a member of the Tribe's Executive 
Committee. 

81. This transfer by the Casino was accounted for as an expense of the Casino 
and none of the hinds transferred to the Casino on June 10,2009, or June 
30,2009, were ever distributed to the Tribe as net gaming revenue as 
required by IERA and the Flandreau Gaming Ordinance. 

82. As a direct result of the "bonus" paid to Respondents, Respondents 
received 78% of the net gaming revenues generated by the OTB for 
calendar year 2008, in violation of IGRA, NIGC regulations, and the 
Flandreau Pari-mume1 Bctting Ordinance. See 25 U.S.C. 
5 9  27TO(b)(2)(A). (d)(l)(A)(ii); 25 C.F.R. 5 522,6(c); FIandreau Pari- 
mutuel Betting Ordinance 4. 

83. The %bonusm payments received by Respondents are above the statutory 
limitations for management contractors set forth in ICRA -which along 
with the controI exercised by Respondents over the OTI3 resulted h the 
Respondents' violation of I G M  and VIGC regulations. See 25 U.S.C. 
$6  272 O(b)(2)(A), (d](l)(A)(ii): 25 C.F.R. 4 522.6(c). 

84. In addition to the above, rather than acting as a manager, Mr. Gallo stated 
that he was the owner of the OTB at the Casino and tlzat the Tribe had no 
ownership interest. Mr. GaIIo also stated that it was his undcrstandi~rg that 
he both owned and operated the OTR at the Casino. 

85. In summary: 

Calendar 
Year 

Nct 
Income on 
which split 
basedP 

Anlolznt 
Received 
by 
Tribe 

Bettor 
Racing 
Amount 
Received 
(including 

Percentage 
of Net 
Iieven~tes 
reccived 

Percentage 
of Net 
Revenues 
received 

by Bettor / by Trihc 



86. Respondents' controI over the OTB, along with an unreasonably high 
percentage of net revenues reccived by them during the term of the 
management contract, provided the Respondents wit11 a pmpAetary 
interest in the OTB. 

87. Respondents possesssd a proprietary interest in the OTB in violation of 
the sole proprietary interest requirement of IGRA, hrZGC regulations, and 
the Flandreari Pari-mutuel Betting Ordinance. See 25 U.S .C. 
$5 2710(b)(2)(A). (d)(l)(A)(ii); 25 C.F.R. I$522.6(c) Flandreau Pari- 2 

f" 
mutwel Betting Ordinance S; 4. 

FOURTH VIOLATION 
Ernproper usc of ncf gamit~,q revenues - Tribe violates JGRA and NIGC re~ulationsbv 
paying Bettor Racing a bonus directly from the net gaming revenues that were owed to 

the Tribe -- 

88. IGRA mandates that the Tribe use its net gaming revenue for one of five 
purposes. See 25 U.S.C. 8 2720(b)(2) and (3); 25 C.F.R. 522.4@)(2) 
and 522.6(b). The Flandrcau Gaming Ordinance requires that ail net 
gaming revenue, as defined by IGRA, be distributed to tl-re Tribe, aid 
mandates that the Tribe use the net gming revenue for the purposes 
specified. Flandreau Gaming Ordinance 8 17-1 -3(15). 

89. According to_rhe approved rnanasement contract. the Tribe is entilled to 
receive _l/, of all net gaming revenue generated by the OTB managed 
by Respondents. All of the monies received from Respondents pursuant lo 
the approved management contzact arc net gaming revenue as defined by 
lGRh and the Flandreau Gaming Ordinance. See 25 U,S.C. fi 2703(9); 
FIandreau Gaming Ordinance $ 1 7-1 -3(15 ). 

90. The Caqino paid Respondents "bonuses" and categorized them as an 
operating expcnsc oiihe Casino. In so doing, the calculation of net gaming 
revenues due to the Tribe was incorrect and the amount paid to 
Respondents as "bonuses" was in fact net gaming revenue due to the 
Tribe. 

91. Therefore, the Tribe, in paying Rcspondel~ts "homuses" in 2006,2007, 
2008, and 2009, violated IGRA, WZGC regulations, and the Flandreau 
Gaming Ordinance by not using net gaming rcvznue as specified in TGM 
and the Flandrau Gaming Ordinance. SCE 25 U.S.C. 5 2710(b)(3); 
Flandreau Gaming Ordinance 4 1 7-1 -3( 1 5 ) .  



FIFTH VIOLATION 
Failure te submit rnanacernent letters - Tribe vioIates Nj.lC regulations by not - 

subnlittin~ management letters within 120 da-ys of its fiscal year end 

92. NIGC regulations require the Tribe to submit m y  management letters, 
together with the Casino's finaxial statements and audit, pmpared by the 
an independent auditor within 120 days of the end of the Casino's fjscal 
year. See 25 C.F.R. 5 57 1.13(a). 

93. In conjunction with the Casino's annual audit for its fiscal year end 
September 27,2005, the Tribe's independent auditor, Donald 9. Ram1 of 
Hanson, Vilhauer & Raml, issued a management Ietter dated October 21, 
2005. The October 2 1,2005 managemen1 letter was not submitted to the 
MGC within 120 days of the Casino's fiscal year end as required by 
N G C  regulations. 

94. Together wit11 the Casino's annual audit for fiscal year end September 26, 
2006, Mr. Ram1 also issued a second management letter dated December 
4,2006.TI1c Dcccmbcr 4,2006 management letter was not submitted to 
the hTGC within i 20 days of the Casino's fiscal year end as required by 
NlGC regulations. 

95. The October 21,2005 and Dccenzber 4,2006 management letters have 
ncvm been submitted to the NIGC. 

96. Therefore, the Tribe violated NIGC reguIation, 25 C.F.R. § 571.13Ca), by 
not submitting the management letters dated October 21,2005, and 
December 4,2006, within 120 days of the Casino's 2005 and 2006 fiscal 
year ends. 

F. Measures Required to Correct the Violations 

Respondents are no longer operating the OTB ai the Casino. Regardless, Respondents can 
and must reimburse the Tribe for a11 of the additional amounts of conlpensation received 
from the Casino because these payments provided tllc Respondents with more 
compensation than was due them under the approved management contract. This amount 
represents the difference between what the Tribe should have received undcr Me 
approved management contract and what the Tribe actually received pursuant to the 
unapproved modifications. This reimbursement must occur within 30 days of this notice. 

The NIGC Audit Division calculated the additional amounts ow@ to the Tribe to be 
fr 
L 

1 Respondents already paid an uncontested $ ,to the Tribe. Therefore, 



Respo-ndcnts must pay the Tribe the tlaiance of ]within RO days afthis notice. 
This amount reflects what is owed lo the Tribe for 2005. 2006,2007, and 2008. 

The NIGC is still investigating the payments made to the Tribe in 2004 and 2010, as well 
as the incentives or rebates paid lo bettors;!- 
and consultiilg fees paid to agents over tlie entire term of the.appraved management 2 bb 
contract. The NIGC Chairwoman may issue an additional notice of violation regarding 
matters that are still under investjgation. 

Further, the Tribe cannot cure its violations of allowing Bettor Racing and Mr. Gallo to 
operate the OTB without an approved management contract or operate under two 
unapproved modifications to the managemer~t contract. 

?he Tribe's failure to submit management sevjcw letters within 120 days of its fiscal year 
end cannot be cured because the timc for filing such documents has passed. 

As for the violation of use of net gaming revenues, when the Tribe is reimbursed by 
Respondents, the amounts receivcd From Respondents must be used in a manner 
consisient with EGRA and the Flandrwu Gaming Ordinance and other applicable Tribal 
laws. 

Within 30 days after service of this Notice of Violation, the Tribe and Respondents may 
appeal to the full Commission under 25 C.F.R. Part 577 by submitting a notice of appeal, 
and, if desired, request for Ileasing to the National Indian Gaming Commission, 14-41 L 
Street NW, Ninth Floor, tVashington, DC 20005. The Tribe and Respondents may appeal 
this Notice of Violation separately. The Tribe and Respondents kavc a right tn assistance 
of counsel in such an appeal. A notice of appeal must reference this Notice oiViolation. 

Within ten days after tiling a notice of appeal, the Tribe and Respondents must file with 
the Commission a supphnental staterncnt that states with particularity the relief desired 
and the grounds there fore and that includes, when available, supporting evidence in the 
form of affidavits. If the Tribe and Respondents wish to present oral testimony or 
witnesses at the hearing, Ihe Tribe and Respondents must include a ~q tses t  to do so wit11 
the supplementaI stafement. The rquest to present oraI testimony or witnesses mu1 
specify the names of proposed witnesses and the general nature of tl-rcir expected 
testimony, whet11er a closed l~eariizg is requested and why. The Tribe and Respondents 
may waive their right 50 an oral hearing and instead elect to have the matter determined 
by the Commission solely on the hasis of written submissions. 

M. Fine-Submission of Infomatio_n_ 

Tlrc vioIations cited above may result in the assessment of civil fines againsl the Tribc 
and Respondents in an amount not to exceed $25,000 per violation per day. Under 25 
C.F.R. 4 575.5(a), t l~e Tribe and Respondents may submit written information about the 



violations to the Chairwoman within 15 days after sewicc of this notice of violation (or 
such longer perjod as Ihc Chairnoman may gmnt for good cause). The Chairwoman shall 
co~lsider any infamalion submitted in detem-lining tl~c facts surrounding the violation 
and the amount of the proposed civil fmes, if my. 

, J$$. 
Dated this /'of May, 201 1 

Tracic L. Stevens, Chairwoman 


